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From: Robertson, William
To: DL Communications; DL FYI; 
Subject: Detroit News -Treasury praises GM repayment
Date: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 11:45:23 AM

Treasury praises GM repayment 
 
DAVID SHEPARDSON 
Detroit News Washington Bureau 
 
Washington -- The Treasury Department praised General Motors Co.'s decision 
to repay its outstanding $4.7 billion in government loans ahead of schedule 
 
"We are encouraged that GM has repaid its debt well ahead of schedule and 
confident that the company is on a strong path to viability," said Treasury 
Secretary Tim Geithner. "This continued progress is a positive sign for our auto 
investment -- not only more funds recovered for the taxpayer but also countless 
jobs saved and the successful stabilization of a vital industry for our country." 
 
The Detroit News reported that GM also paid $700 million in interest on the 
loans when it made a wire transfer Tuesday. GM also repaid $1.1 billion to the 
Canadian and Ontario governments -- and an unspecified interest payment. 
 
GM had previously repaid the Treasury $2 billion and the Canadian governments 
about $400 million. 
 
After the repayment, the Treasury holds a 61 percent stake in GM and $2.1 
billion in preferred stock. The Treasury Department swapped about $43 billion in 
loans for the stock; taxpayers won't know if they will be repaid in full until the 
government sells off its share over the next few years. 
 
Earlier estimates had suggested taxpayers could lose as much as $20 billion on 
its GM investment, but most recent predictions show a much smaller predicted 
loss. 
 
dshepardson@detnews.com">dshepardson@detnews.com (202) 662-8735 
 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
© Copyright 2010 The Detroit News. All rights reserved. 
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From: Robertson, William
To: DL Communications; DL FYI; 
Subject: AP-GM Pays Back Government Loans From US, Canada
Date: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 11:55:41 AM

GM Pays Back Government Loans From US, Canada 
Automaker Received $5.2B From US Government 
TOM KRISHER, AP Auto Writer 
 
POSTED: Tuesday, April 20, 2010 
UPDATED: 11:42 am EDT April 21, 2010 
 
 
DETROIT -- General Motors Co. has repaid the $8.1 billion in loans it got from 
the U.S. and Canadian governments, a move its CEO says is a sign automaker is 
on the road to recovery. 
 
GM CEO Whitacre announced the loan paybacks Wednesday at the company's 
Fairfax Assembly Plant in Kansas City, Kan., where he said GM is investing $257 
million in that factory and the Detroit-Hamtramck plant, both of which will build 
the next generation of the midsize Chevrolet Malibu. 
 
GM got a total of $52 billion from the U.S. government and $9.5 billion from the 
Canadian and Ontario governments as it went through bankruptcy protection last 
year. At first the entire amount of U.S. aid was considered a loan as the 
government tried to keep GM from going under and pulling the fragile economy 
into a depression. 
 
But during bankruptcy, the U.S. government reduced the loan portion to $6.7 
billion and converted the rest to company stock, while the Canadian 
governments held $1.4 billion in loans. 
 
The automaker hopes to repay the remaining $45.3 billion to the U.S. 
government and $8.1 billion to Canada via a public stock offering, perhaps later 
this year. The U.S. government now owns 61 percent of the company and 
Canada owns roughly 12 percent. 
 
The U.S. payments, made Tuesday, came five years ahead of schedule, and 
Whitacre said they are a sign that the automaker is on its way toward reducing 
government ownership of the company. The payments on the Canadian loans 
were also made Tuesday. 
 
"Nobody was happy that GM needed government loans -- not the governments, 
not the taxpayers and, quite frankly, not the company," Whitacre wrote in an op-
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ed article that appeared on The Wall Street Journal's Web site Tuesday night. 
"We believe we can best thank the citizens of the U.S. and Canada by making 
sure that their investments are hard at work every day, building high quality, 
fuel-efficient vehicles." 
 
The factory investments in Kansas and Michigan will not create any new jobs, 
but will preserve jobs at both plants. The Kansas plant, which employs 3,869 
workers, also builds the midsize Buick LaCrosse luxury sedan. The Detroit-
Hamtramck plant, which has 1,048 employees, now builds the Cadillac DTS and 
Buick Lucerne large sedans and is gearing up to make the Chevrolet Volt 
rechargeable electric car. 
 
During the financial crisis that led to GM filing for bankruptcy protection last 
year, the automaker closed 14 factories and shed more than 65,000 blue-collar 
jobs in the U.S. through buyouts, early retirement offers and layoffs. The 
company now employs about 40,000 hourly workers in the U.S. 
 
Preserving jobs at the two GM plants won't help the nation's unemployment 
picture, but it won't make it worse. 
 
Employers nationwide in March added 162,000 jobs, the most in three years. But 
the pace of the economic recovery and job creation won't be robust enough to 
quickly drive down the unemployment rate. It's been stuck at 9.7 percent for 
three months, close to its highest levels since the 1980s. 
 
GM had made about $2 billion in loan payments to the U.S. government and 
$384 million to Canada in December and March, and had promised to repay the 
full loans by June. But company officials have said its cash flow, mainly from the 
sales of newer models, has been better than expected, allowing it to make the 
remaining $5.8 billion in payments early. 
 
U.S. Treasury Secretary Timothy Geithner said in a statement that he's confident 
GM is on a path toward viability. 
 
"This continued progress is a positive sign for our auto investment -- not only 
more funds recovered for the taxpayer, but also countless jobs saved and the 
successful stabilization of a vital industry for our country," he said in a statement. 
 
The Treasury Department said total repayments under the Troubled Asset Relief 
Program, or TARP, now stand at $186 billion, with less than $200 billion in 
bailout money outstanding. 
 
The government still has $2.1 billion worth of GM preferred stock, plus its 61 
percent share of common equity, the statement said. 
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Repaying the loans has been a top priority for Whitacre. 
 
GM officials say the company's public stock offering will take place when the 
markets and the company are ready. They will not predict how much of the 
remaining government debt will be repaid from the stock offering, but said it 
likely will take years for the governments to divest themselves fully. 
 
The stock offering hinges on GM posting a profit, which Whitacre has said could 
come this year. GM lost $3.4 billion in the fourth quarter of 2009 on revenues of 
$32.3 billion. 
 
After the event at the Kansas City plant on Wednesday, Whitacre is scheduled to 
fly to Washington, where he will meet with House Speaker Nancy Pelosi and 
other lawmakers. 
 
Copyright 2010 by The Associated Press. All rights reserved. This material may 
not be published, broadcast, rewritten or redistributed. 
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From: Robertson, William
To: DL Communications; DL FYI; 
Subject: DJ-GM Pays Off Government Loan 
Date: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 11:46:35 AM

GM Pays Off Government Loan 
By SHARON TERLEP 
General Motors Co. on Wednesday said it paid off a $6.7 billion U.S. government 
loan ahead of schedule in a move the company hopes will help revive an image 
marred by last year's bailout. 
 
"This is the new pace at GM," Mr. Whitacre said to a crowd of cheering factory 
workers and government leaders at a plant in Kansas City, Kan. "GM's ability to 
pay back loans is a sign our plan is working, and it is also an important step 
toward letting our stockholders reduce their interest in the company." 
 
The loan is a fraction of the $50 billion GM received from the U.S. government 
last year. The big payback will come when GM goes public and the U.S. can 
begin to sell off its 60% stake in the company. 
 
But Wednesday's move is a significant step toward shaking the bailout stigma, 
which GM executives and dealers see as a major hurdle to a recovery in the 
critical U.S. market. Mr. Whitacre is keenly aware of the negative sentiment 
surrounding GM because of its troubles, and going all out to change that image. 
 
He will appear in television commercials, which begin airing Wednesday, to tout 
the loan repayment. Later Wednesday, Mr. Whitacre will head to Capitol Hill to 
announce the payback in person. The move is reminiscent of former Chrysler 
CEO Lee Iacocca, who won over Americans when he repaid $1 billion in 
government loan guarantees used to rescue the auto maker in 1980s. 
 
Mr. Whitacre footed the bill personally for the charted flight he will take from 
Kansas City to Washington D.C., looking to avoid the firestorm that engulfed 
Detroit's auto makers in 2008 when the company CEOs few in private jets to 
plead for a bailout in Washington D.C. 
 
Rival Ford Motor Co. received a big lift from dodging a bailout and bankruptcy. 
Ford's sales through March are up 38% to GM's 17% increase; the company 
turned a profit in 2009 while GM continued to rack up losses. 
 
"This will raise a lot of eyebrows in a positive sense," said Tammy Darvish, vice 
president of Dar-cars Automotive Group, based in Silver Spring, Md., which owns 
a Chevrolet dealership. "I have many customers who have sent us letters that 
say, 'As long as they have government money, we're not going to support them.' 
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" 
 
Mr. Whitacre on Wednesday also announced the company is investing $257 
million to build the next generation of Chevrolet Malibu sedans at the Kansas 
City factory and another plant in Hamtramck, Mich. 
 
He said, since exiting bankruptcy, GM has invested $1.5 billion into U.S. and 
Canadian factories and added 7,500 production jobs. 
 
U.S. Treasury Secretary Tim Geithner, scheduled to meet with Mr. Whitacre later 
Wednesday, said move is a sign GM is on the right track. After the repayment, 
the U.S. Treasury's stake in GM stands at $2.1 billion in preferred stock and 
60.8% percent of common equity. 
 
"We are encouraged that GM has repaid its debt well ahead of schedule and 
confident that the company is on a strong path to viability," Mr. Geithner said in 
a statement. 
 
 
Write to Sharon Terlep at sharon.terlep@dowjones.com 
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From: Fu, Alan
To: Bloom, Ron; 
cc: Stevens, Haley; 
Subject: GM commercial
Date: Wednesday, April 28, 2010 3:03:20 PM

Here is a YouTube link for the GM commercial:
 
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SSNPFVLIWjI
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From: Office of Public Affairs
To: DL FYI; 
Subject: GM REPAYS TREASURY LOAN IN FULL, TARP REPAYMENTS REACH $186 BILLION
Date: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 11:16:23 AM

Treasury Building

 

U.S. Treasury Department  
Office of Public Affairs 

  
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:  April 21, 2010                   
CONTACT: Treasury Public Affairs (202) 622-2960 
  

GM REPAYS TREASURY LOAN IN FULL,  
TARP REPAYMENTS REACH $186 BILLION 

GM Repayment of Remaining $4.7 Billion in Debt Comes Five Years Ahead of 
Maturity Date 

  
WASHINGTON – The U.S. Department of the Treasury today announced that 
General Motors (GM) has fully repaid its debt under the Troubled Asset Relief 
Program (TARP). GM paid the remaining $4.7 billion of the total $6.7 billion in debt 
owed to Treasury. The repayment comes five years ahead of the loan maturity date 
and ahead of the accelerated repayment schedule the company announced last year. 
  
Total TARP repayments now stand at $186 billion – well ahead of last fall’s 
repayment projections for 2010. With this repayment, less than $200 billion in TARP 
disbursements remain outstanding. 
  
“We are encouraged that GM has repaid its debt well ahead of schedule and confident 
that the company is on a strong path to viability,” said Treasury Secretary Tim 
Geithner. “This continued progress is a positive sign for our auto investment – not 
only more funds recovered for the taxpayer but also countless jobs saved and the 
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successful stabilization of a vital industry for our country.” 
  
After this repayment, the remaining Treasury stake in GM consists of $2.1 billion in 
preferred stock and 60.8 percent of the common equity. 
  

### 

You can change your subscriptions, password or e-mail address, or unsubscribe at any time 
from your Subscriber Preferences Page using your e-mail address to log in. 

For questions or problems with this subscription service, e-mail support@govdelivery.com. 

U.S. Department of the Treasury · 1500 Pennsylvania Ave, NW, Washington, D.C. 20220 · (202) 622-2000 

10



From: Massad, Timothy
To: Fitzpayne, Alastair; LeCompte, Jenni; 
cc: Adeyemo, Adewale (Wally); Reilly, Meg; Allison, Herbert; Ochs, Susan; 

Weideman, Christian; Wallace, Kim; Goedman, Menno; Lee, Peter; 
Bloom, Ron; "Deese, Brian C."; Samuels, Jonathan; mara.mcneil@do.treas.
gov; Fu, Alan; 

Subject: RE: AP: Republican senator criticizes GM loan repayment
Date: Thursday, April 29, 2010 6:05:54 AM

Please send the Ryan letter.  We can prepare a response today.   Alan and Mara, 
can you get that done?  Thanks.  
________________________________________ 
From: Fitzpayne, Alastair 
Sent: Wednesday, April 28, 2010 11:23 PM 
To: LeCompte, Jenni 
Cc: Adeyemo, Adewale (Wally); Reilly, Meg; Allison, Herbert; Ochs, Susan; 
Massad, Timothy; Weideman, Christian; Wallace, Kim; Goedman, Menno; Lee, 
Peter; Bloom, Ron; 'Deese, Brian C.'; Samuels, Jonathan 
Subject: RE: AP: Republican senator criticizes GM loan repayment 
 
FYI. 
 
General Motor's early repayment under fire 
 
The Hill 
 
Ian Swanson 
 
[cid:image001.gif@01CAE729.D32DCCF0] Print This Story <http://home.do.treas.
gov/paoclips/news item.asp?sid=246910> 
 
 
Republicans are criticizing the administration for hailing GM’s repayment of $4.7 
billion to the government last week. 
 
The move was trumpeted by the Treasury Department, and Secretary Tim 
Geithner on Tuesday highlighted the repayment as another sign that the 
economy is getting back on track because of administration policies. 
 
 
GM is also celebrating the news through a national advertising campaign. 
 
 
What GM doesn’t say in the commercial is that the company still owes tens of 
billions of dollars to the government, which exchanged the debt positions it held 
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in both GM and Chrysler for a blend of debt, equity and preferred shares in the 
new companies that emerged from bankruptcy. 
 
 
Treasury holds over $2 billion in preferred GM stock and 60.8 percent of the 
company’s shares, which are not yet publicly traded. 
 
 
Sen. Chuck Grassley (R-Iowa) has lashed out at the Treasury for its 
announcement of GM’s repayment, and all but accused it of being dishonest. 
He’s pointed to a TARP inspector general’s report that said GM used TARP funds 
from an escrow account to pay off its TARP loan. 
 
 
“The bottom line seems to be that the TARP loans were ‘repaid’ with other TARP 
funds in a Treasury escrow account,” Grassley wrote in a letter to Geithner. 
 
 
“The TARP loans were not repaid from money GM is earning selling cars, as GM 
and the administration have claimed in their speeches, press releases and 
television commercials.” 
 
Source: 
http://thehill.com/blogs/on-the-money/801-economy/94757-gm-repayment-
under-fire 
The contents of this site are © 2010 Capitol Hill Publishing Corp., a subsisiary of 
News Communications, Inc. 
 
 
From: Fitzpayne, Alastair 
Sent: Wednesday, April 28, 2010 10:22 PM 
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
Subject: FW: AP: Republican senator criticizes GM loan repayment 
 
Fyi – we rec’d a new letter on this topic today from the house R’s (ryan, 
hensarling, garrett).  Also, gary peters was asked about this when he was being 
interviewed on Fox Business today and supposedly struggled with his response.  

 
 

 
p.s. Herb – we have tasked the response to the Ryan letter to you. 
 
From: LeCompte, Jenni 

(b) (5)
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Sent: Wednesday, April 28, 2010 8:28 PM 
To: _DL_FYI 
Subject: AP: Republican senator criticizes GM loan repayment 
 
Republican senator criticizes GM loan repayment 
By KEN THOMAS (AP) 
WASHINGTON — General Motors' repayment of a $6.7 billion government loan 
was criticized Wednesday by a top Republican lawmaker, who said the 
automaker simply shuffled federal bailout funds to pay back taxpayers. 
Sen. Charles Grassley, R-Iowa, scolded General Motors for failing to 
acknowledge in advertising publicizing the loan repayment that the government 
still owns nearly 61 percent of the Detroit automaker. He questioned whether 
taxpayers ever would be fully compensated. 
"The hype does not match the reality. Taxpayers have not been repaid in full — 
far from it. ... Much of it will never be repaid," Grassley said. 
The Treasury Department, in a letter to Grassley, defended the GM loan 
repayment and called it "good news for the company, our investment and the 
American people." 
GM spokesman Greg Martin said the repayment was "a clear sign that our plan is 
working and a critical step toward returning GM to profitability and public 
ownership. It's hard to see how GM's loan repayment could not be seen as a 
positive milestone for the company and taxpayers." 
GM announced the repayment of $8.1 billion in loans from the U.S. and 
Canadian governments last week. In TV advertising, CEO Ed Whitacre tells 
viewers GM has "repaid our government loan in full, with interest, five years 
ahead of the original schedule. But there's still more to do." 
The ads don't mention that the majority of the $52 billion in federal aid to GM 
was converted into a 61 percent government ownership stake. GM has said it 
hopes to conduct a public stock offering later this year to let taxpayers recoup its 
investment. 
GM paid off its loan from a $16 billion escrow fund created by the government 
as part of the company's bankruptcy last year. The fund was developed to give 
GM some cushion in case the economy tumbled but required the automaker to 
seek permission from the Treasury Department before spending it. 
Treasury told Grassley in the letter it was "public knowledge that GM would use 
these specific funds to repay the Treasury and Canadian loans, if it did not 
otherwise need them for expenses." 
Grassley called it "an elaborate TARP money shuffle" amounting to "taking TARP 
money out of one account to pay back TARP loans in another account." 
The Congressional Budget Office estimates taxpayers will lose about $36 billion 
on the bailouts of automakers. 
By paying off the loans early, GM essentially said it did not need the government 
cushion and was beginning to make money on its revamped lineup of passenger 
cars and crossover vehicles. GM made about $2.4 billion in loan payments in 
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December and March and had promised to repay the full loans by June. 
Copyright © 2010 The Associated Press. All rights reserved. 
 
 
Jenni R. LeCompte 
Deputy Assistant Secretary, Public Affairs Operations 
U.S. Department of the Treasury 
202-622-2920 
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From: Bloom, Ron
To:  
Subject: RE: GM Commercial
Date: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 3:58:00 PM

:) 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From:  
Sent: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 3:27 PM 
To: Bloom, Ron 
Subject: GM Commercial 
 
Ron, 
 
I just saw the TV commercial where Ed Whitacre tells America how GM has 
repaid the Govt loan, in full, with interest...5 yrs early. 
 
Congatulations and thanks. 
 
A grateful taxpayer 

  

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)
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From: Robertson, William
To: DL Communications; DL FYI; 
Subject: REUTERS-General Motors Repays TARP Loan In Full: Treasury
Date: Wednesday, April 21, 2010 11:47:21 AM

General Motors Repays TARP Loan In Full: Treasury 
By REUTERS 
Filed at 11:27 a.m. ET 
 
WASHINGTON (Reuters) - The U.S. Treasury Department confirmed on 
Wednesday that automaker General Motors Co has repaid the $4.7 billion 
balance in Trouble Asset Relief Program debt it owed. 
 
The repayment comes five years ahead of the loan maturity date and ahead of 
the accelerated repayment schedule the company announced last year, Treasury 
said. 
 
"We are encouraged that GM has repaid its debt well ahead of schedule and 
confident that the company is on a strong path to viability," Treasury Secretary 
Timothy Geithner said in a statement. 
 
(Reporting by Nancy Waitz; editing by Patrick Graham) 
 

16



Attached are the latest drafts of the following items:  

- Summary of events and ac ivities  
- Key messages  
- Press release  
- Media event remarks  
- Media Q & A  

Regards,  
Renee  

 
 

Renee J. Rashid-Merem  
GM Financial Communica ions  
Office    Cell   

Learn about what's new at GM by visiting our web site at  
http://media.gm.com  

 
 
 

Nothing in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature unless a specific statement to the contrary is included in this message.  

Confidentiality Note: This message is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. It may contain confidential and/or privileged 
material.  Any review, transmission, dissemina ion or other use, or taking of any action in reliance upon this message by persons or entities other han 
the intended recipient is prohibited and may be unlawful. If you received this message in error, please contact the sender and delete it from your 
computer. 

From: <renee.rashid-merem@gm.com>
Sent: Monday, April 19, 2010 5:44:06 PM
To: Alan.Fu@do.treas.gov
Cc: Haley.Stevens@do.treas.gov, randy.c.arickx@gm.com 
Subject: Draft materials for Apr 21-22
Attachments: Apr 21 22 key events and activities.docx; 042110 Triple Play Q and A Version 7.docx; 042110 April 21 release version 11 docx; 

042110 EEW Remarks - Fairfax 11.docx; Obj and key messages rev 041610.docx 

(b) (6)(b) (6)
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News 

For Release: 10 AM CDT 
April 21, 2010

 
General Motors  

 

GM Communications 
Detroit, Mich., USA 
media.gm.com 

 

CONFIDENTIAL DRAFT April 19, 2 p.m. 

 

GM Pays Back Government Loans in Full, 

 Announces Investment in Fairfax, Detroit Hamtramck 

 

• GM pays back its loans from U.S. Treasury and Export Development Canada 

• Strong sales, confident outlook enable payback ahead of schedule 

• $257 million investment announced for Fairfax, Kansas, and Detroit Hamtramck 

 

KANSAS CITY, KANSAS – General Motors Company Chairman and CEO Ed Whitacre today 

announced that GM has made its final payment of $5.8 billion to the U.S. Treasury and Export 

Development Canada, paying back its government loans in full, ahead of schedule. 

The announcement came at a ceremony here to announce new investment of $257 million at 

GM’s Fairfax, Kansas, and Detroit Hamtramck assembly centers.  The investment will prepare 

Fairfax to build the next generation of Chevrolet’s award-winning Malibu, and make Detroit 

Hamtramck a second source for Malibu, ensuring that Chevrolet can meet market demand for this 

popular mid-size sedan. 

“GM is able to repay the taxpayers in full, with interest, ahead of schedule, because more 

customers are buying vehicles like the Chevrolet Malibu and Buick LaCrosse we build here in 

Fairfax,” said Whitacre. “We are now building some of the best cars, trucks, and crossovers we 

have ever built, and customers are taking note.  Our dealers are increasing their sales, we are 

investing in our plants, and we are restoring and creating jobs.” 

The U.S., Canadian, and Ontario governments, as part of the launch of the new GM, provided 

loans of $8.4 billion and took equity stakes in the new company.  Today’s payment of $5.8 billion 

($4.7 billion to the U.S. Treasury and $C1.1 billion to Export Development Canada) completes the 

payback of these loans. 

“GM’s ability to pay back the loans ahead of schedule is a sign that our plan is working, and that 

we are on the right track.  It is also an important first step toward allowing our stockholders to 

reduce their equity investments in GM,” said Whitacre. “We still have much hard work ahead of 

us, but we are making progress toward our vision of designing, building, and selling the world’s 

best vehicles. 

“We appreciate the support the taxpayers have given GM, and our great new products are 

tangible results of that support.” 
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Strong sales support manufacturing, jobs 

Strong sales of new Chevrolet, Buick, GMC, and Cadillac products are fueling a steady increase 

in production as GM works to meet growing customer demand. 

Sales for GM’s four brands are up 36 percent through March versus the same period in 2009, and 

many newly introduced cars and crossovers – including Chevy Equinox, Camaro and Traverse; 

GMC Terrain and Acadia; Buick LaCrosse; and Cadillac SRX – remain short supply at GM 

dealers.  

The Fairfax plant currently builds two of GM’s strongest selling cars, the Chevy Malibu and Buick 

LaCrosse.  For the first three months of this year, GM’s U.S. dealers delivered 49,339 Malibus 

and 14,345 LaCrosses, representing a 58 percent increase over the same period last year.  In 

response to this strong demand, Fairfax in February added a third shift of approximately 900 jobs, 

bringing total employment at the plant to approximately 3,700. 

Fairfax will become the primary source for the next generation of the Malibu.  Detroit Hamtramck, 

which builds the Buick Lucerne and Cadillac DTS, will be equipped to build the Malibu as well, 

ensuring that Chevrolet can meet market demand. 

Detroit Hamtramck will also build the Chevy Volt electric vehicle with extended range, which 

launches this year.  On March 31, the plant celebrated a major milestone, the building of the first 

pre-production Volt on the regular assembly line.  

The new investments of $136 million in Fairfax and $121 million in Detroit Hamtramck will include 

facilities, machinery and equipment, and tools. 

Since the launch of the new GM last July, the company has announced investments of more than 

$1.5 billion at 20 facilities in the U.S. and Canada.  These investments restored or created more 

than 7,500 jobs, and they demonstrate a strong commitment to GM’s future and to the United 

States and Canada. 

 

 

### 

 

About General Motors:  General Motors, one of the world’s largest automakers, traces its roots 

back to 1908.  With its global headquarters in Detroit, GM employs 217,000 people in every major 

region of the world and does business in some 140 countries.  GM and its strategic partners 

produce cars and trucks in 34 countries, and sell and service these vehicles through the following 

brands:  Buick, Cadillac, Chevrolet, FAW, GMC, GM Daewoo, Holden, Opel, Vauxhall and 

Wuling.  GM’s largest national market is the United States, followed by China, Brazil, Germany, 

the United Kingdom, Canada, and Italy.  GM’s OnStar subsidiary is the industry leader in vehicle 

safety, security and information services.  General Motors acquired operations from General 

Motors Corporation on July 10, 2009, and references to prior periods in this and other press 

materials refer to operations of the old General Motors Corporation.  More information on the new 

General Motors can be found at www.gm.com. 
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Forward-Looking Statements: In this press release and in related comments by our 

management, our use of the words “expect,” “anticipate,” “possible,” “potential,” “target,” “believe,” 

“commit,” “intend,” “continue,” “may,” “would,” “could,” “should,” “project,” “projected,” “positioned” 

or similar expressions is intended to identify forward-looking statements that represent our current 

judgment about possible future events. We believe these judgments are reasonable, but these 

statements are not guarantees of any events or financial results, and our actual results may differ 

materially due to a variety of important factors. Among other items, such factors might include: 

our ability to comply with the requirements of our credit agreements with the U.S. Treasury and 

EDC and to repay those agreements as planned; our ability to realize production efficiencies and 

to achieve reductions in costs as a result of our restructuring initiatives and labor modifications; 

our ability to maintain quality control over our vehicles and avoid material vehicle recalls; our 

ability to maintain adequate liquidity and financing sources and an appropriate level of debt, 

including as required to fund our planning significant investment in new technology and our ability 

to realize successful vehicle applications of new technology.  

 

GM's most recent annual report on Form 10-K provides information about these and other 

factors, which we may revise or supplement in future reports to the SEC.  

 

### 

 

CONTACT(S): 

Tom Wilkinson 

 

tom.wilkinson@gm.com 

 

Renee Rashid-Merem 

 

renee.rashid-merem@gm.com 

 

Kim Carpenter 

 

kimberly.carpenter@gm.com 

 

 

 

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)
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